
Chester County Council Meeting 

1 | P a g e

R. Carlisle Roddey Government Building
1476 J A Cochran Bypass | Chester, SC 29706 

Monday, October 6, 2025 | 6:00 PM 
AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION

3. ADMINISTRATION OF OATH OF OFFICE

Roy Brunson, County Council District 2

sworn in by Wld. Bill Marion

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

a) September 15, 2025 Council Meeting Minutes

b) September 16, 2025 Special Called Meeting Minutes

c) September 24, 2025 Special Called Meeting Minutes

5. CITIZEN’S COMMENTS

6. PUBLIC HEARING

a) Ordinance 2025-20 Authorizing the conveyance of easement rights to Duke Energy Carolinas,

LLC, for the purpose of utility infrastructure construction and maintenance at property

located at or about the Chester County Courthouse, designated as TMS #201-11-01-007-000;
and providing for other related matters.

7. ORDINANCES | RESOLUTIONS | PROCLAMATIONS

a) Proclamation recognizing Fire Prevention Week in Chester County

b) 2nd Reading of Ordinance 2025-22 Approving, confirming, and ratifying the removal of each

member of the Richburg Fire Protection District Board; devolving administrative authority of

the district on the County Council; (c) authorizing the County Administrator directly to
administer the district as a part of the county; (d) amending portions of the Chester County

Code of Ordinances to conform to such changes and to provide for other changes, for

example, Division 16, Sections 2-732 through and including 2-736; and (e) providing for other

related matters.



 

2 | P a g e  
 

c) Resolution 2025-26 Authorizing the transfer of certain personal property; and providing for 
other related matters. 

 

8. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 

9. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

a) 2nd Reading of Ordinance 2025-21  

Providing for an amendment to Ordinance No. 2025-08, which amended Ordinance No. 2021-

18, which provided for the use of excess funding for “projects” and/or “capital projects” as 

provided for under Ordinance No. 2019-5; and providing for other related matters 
 

b) 3rd Reading of Ordinance 2025-20 

Authorizing the conveyance of easement rights to Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC, for the purpose 
of utility infrastructure construction and maintenance at property located at or about the 

Chester County Courthouse, designated as TMS #201-11-01-007-000; and providing for other 

related matters. 
 

c) 3rd Reading of CCMA25-18 CDP Great Falls LLC requests a portion of Tax Map # 161-01-00-059-

000 (1.3 acres) located off Ridgeway Road, Great Falls, SC 29055 from Multi-family Residential 

District (RG-1) to General Commercial District (GC). The Planning Commission voted 6-0 to 
approve. 

 

d) 3rd Reading of CCMA25-19 ICB America, LP, a Georgia Limited Partnership requests Tax Map # 

080-04-05-026-000 (1.4 acres) located at 527 Great Falls Highway, Chester, SC 29706 from 

General Commercial District (GC) to Restricted Industrial District (ID-1). The Planning 

Commission voted 6-0 to approve. 
 

e) 3rd Reading of CCMA25-20 ICB America, LP, a Georgia Limited Partnership requests Tax Map # 

080-04-05-027-000 (0.102 +/- acres) located next to 527 Great Falls Highway, Chester, SC 29706 

from General Commercial District (GC) to Restricted Industrial District (ID-1). The Planning 
Commission voted 6-0 to approve. 

 

10. OLD BUSINESS 
 

11. NEW BUSINESS 

 

a) Recommendation to proceed with Parks and Recreation Strategic Plan 

Justin Temple, Chairman of Parks and Recreation Advisory Board 

 
b) Consideration of Woodhaven Phase III Bond Approval 

Jeremy Ward, Planning and Development Director 

 

 
 



 

3 | P a g e  
 

c) 1st Reading of CCMA25-21 Abhishek Devgan requests Tax Map #019-00-00-011-000 (2.99+/- 
acres) located at 3280 Pinckney Road, Chester, SC 29706 to be rezoned from Rural Two District 

(R2) to General Commercial District (GC). The Planning Commission voted 7-0 to approve. 

 
d) 1st Reading of CCMA25-22 Chester County requests Tax Map #169-00-00-001-000 (310+/- acres) 

to be assigned a zoning classification of Rural Three District (R3) for the development of a 

commercial campground/state park within Big Island and Mountain Island near Great Falls, SC 
29055. The Planning Commission voted 7-0 to approve. 

 

e) 1st Reading of CCMA25-23 Chester County requests Tax Map #169-00-00-003-000 (0.88 +/- 

acres) to be assigned a zoning classification of Rural Three District (R3) for the development of 
a commercial campground/state park within Big Island and Mountain Island near Great Falls, 

SC 29055. The Planning Commission voted 7-0 to approve. 

 
f) 1st Reading of CCMA25-24 Chester County requests Tax Map #169-00-00-004-000 (3.71 +/- 

acres) to be assigned a zoning classification of Rural Three District (R3) for the development of 

a commercial campground/state park within Big Island and Mountain Island near Great Falls, 
SC 29055. The Planning Commission voted 7-0 to approve. 

 

g) 1st Reading of CCMA25-25 Chester County requests Tax Map #170-00-00-001-000 (458.94 +/- 

acres) to be assigned a zoning classification of Rural Three District (R3) for the development of 
a commercial campground/state park within Big Island and Mountain Island near Great Falls, 

SC 29055. The Planning Commission voted 7-0 to approve. 

 

h) 1st Reading of CCMA25-26 Chester County requests Tax Map #170-00-00-002-000 (unknown 

acreage) to be assigned a zoning classification of Rural Three District (R3) for the development 

of a commercial campground/state park within Big Island and Mountain Island near Great 
Falls, SC 29055. The Planning Commission voted 7-0 to approve. 

 

i) 1st Reading of CCMA25-27 Chester County requests Tax Map #170-00-00-004-000 (28.59+/- 

acres) to be assigned a zoning classification of Rural Three District (R3) for the development of 
a commercial campground/state park within Big Island and Mountain Island near Great Falls, 

SC 29055. The Planning Commission voted 7-0 to approve. 

 
12. BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

 

a) Planning Commission Resignation  
Vice Chair Erin Mosley, Council Member At-Large 
 

b) Board of Assessment Appeals Resignation  

Chairman Pete Wilson, District 4 

 

c) Chester County Historical Cemeteries Advisory Board Resignation  

Vice Chair Erin Mosley, Council Member At-Large 

 



 

4 | P a g e  
 

    
 
Pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, the Chester News & Reporter, The Herald in Rock Hill, SC, WSOC-TV, Channel 9 Eyewitness News, the Mfg. Housing Institute of SC, 
WRHI Radio Station, C&N2 News, WCNC News and Capitol Consultants were notified, and a notice was posted on the bulletin board at the Chester County Government Building 
twenty-four hours prior to the meeting.  

d) Hazel Pittman Center Board of Directors Appointment  
Chairman Pete Wilson, District 4 

 

e) Lewis Fire Protection District Board Resignation  

Councilman Corey Guy, District 5 

 

f) Radio Users Advisory Board Appointment  
Vice Chair Erin Mosley, Council Member At-Large 

 

13. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

14. ACTIONS FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

15.  COUNCIL COMMENTS  
 

16. ADJOURN 
  
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

Guidelines for Addressing Council 
Citizens Comments: 
Each citizen will be limited to three minutes.  

Public Hearings:  
Each speaker will be limited to three minutes.  

When introduced:  
Approach the podium, state your name and address.  
Speak loudly and clearly, making sure that the microphone is not obstructed.  
Do not address the audience – direct all comments to Council.  
Do not approach the Council table unless directed.  

 Anyone addressing Council will be called out of order if you:  
Use profanity.  
Stray from the subject.  
Make comments personally attacking an individual member of Council.  



Chester County Council Meeting 

1 | P a g e  
 

R. Carlisle Roddey Government Building 
1476 J A Cochran Bypass | Chester, SC 29706 

Monday, September 15, 2025 | 6:00 PM 

MINUTES 
 

Present: Chairman Pete Wilson, Vice Chair Erin Mosley, Councilman William Killian, Councilman Bobby Raines, 
Councilman Corey Guy, Councilman John Agee, County Administrator Brian Hester, Attorney Michael Kozlarek, 
Clerk to Council Kristie Donaldson 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Wilson called the meeting to order at 6:04pm and declared a quorum of council present. 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION 
The allegiance was recited. Chairman Wilson asked that a moment of silence be held to honor the life of Mr. 
Kenny Young, a beloved bailiff at the Chester County Courthouse, that passed away on Sunday, September 14. 
Councilman Corey guy delivered the invocation. 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

a) September 2, 2025 Council Meeting Minutes 
Councilman Raines motioned to approve, seconded by Vice Chair Mosley. Vote 5-0 to approve. 

Councilman Killian refrained from voting due to his absence. 
4. CITIZEN’S COMMENTS 

John Massey of 171 East Lacy Street addressed the council to advocate for the creation of a Citizen Review Board 

(CRB) in Chester County. He explained that CRBs, which are used in other cities, are designed to ensure fairness 

and transparency in law enforcement and government agencies by allowing community members to review 

citizen complaints and make recommendations. Mr. Massey emphasized that such a board would build trust 

between agencies and the community, and that ethical agencies should have nothing to fear from this oversight. 

He urged the council to implement a CRB soon and mentioned an upcoming meeting with a council member to 

discuss the matter further. 

Roxann James of 3007 Steele Village Road spoke to the council about concerns from the Lewis Fire Tax District. 

She referenced a recent town hall meeting and expressed gratitude to council members for their service. Mrs. 

James questioned the need for changes to the fire district and asked whether residents like herself would have 

the opportunity to vote or provide input on the matter. She emphasized the importance of community 

involvement in decisions affecting the fire district. 

Mike Lanham of 1497 Lancaster Highway, representing IKO Glass Fiber and IKO Matt, thanked the council for their 

support as the company expands its operations in Chester. He highlighted the importance of the local plant to 

their overall business and discussed recent and upcoming plant startups. Mr. Lanham acknowledged some 

equipment noise issues and described ongoing efforts to resolve them. In response to a question from 

Councilman Agee, he explained that about 25% of their raw materials will be delivered by rail (approximately 5–7 

rail cars per day), with the remainder arriving by truck. 

 

 

 



 

2 | P a g e  
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING 

Chairman Wilson opened the public hearing, no one signed up to speak or wished to speak and the public 

hearing was closed. 

a) Ordinance 2025-17 Authorizing the execution and delivery of a first amendment to fee-in-lieu 
of tax and incentive agreement, by and among Chester County, South Carolina (“county”), IKO 

Glass Fiber Inc. (“IKO Glass”), and IKO Mat Tech Inc. (“IKO Tech”), previously identified as 

Project Phoenix22, acting for themselves, one or more affiliates and/or other project sponsors 

(collectively, “company”), pursuant to which the company and the county agree to certain 
amended incentives and amended performance measures; and providing for other related 

matters. 
 

b) Ordinance 2025-18 To repeal the county’s land development regulations, enacted December 

11, 2002, as subsequently amended, and replace the same by enacting Chapter 2: Subdivision 
and Land Development Regulations, of the County’s Unified Development Ordinance; and to 

provide for other related matters. 

 
c) Ordinance 2025-19 Amending Ordinance No. 2018-11, as amended and clarified by Ordinance 

No. 2022-13, as further amended by Ordinance No. 2023-15, to provide for the allocation of fee 

in lieu of tax revenues for some property located in the county; and providing for other related 
matters. 

 

6. ORDINANCES | RESOLUTIONS | PROCLAMATIONS 

 

a) 1st Reading of Ordinance 2025-21 – Providing for an amendment to Ordinance No. 2025-08, 

which amended Ordinance No. 2021-18, which provided for the use of excess funding for 

“projects” and/or “capital projects” as provided for under Ordinance No. 2019-5; and 
providing for other related matters. 
Administrator Hester explained that Ordinance 2025-21 amends a previous ordinance to allow the use of 

excess Capital Project Sales Tax (CPST) funds for additional courthouse improvements, specifically to 

address ADA compliance issues and install a generator. He outlined a funding shortfall of $320,979 for the 

ADA project and up to $25,000 for generator installation, totaling up to $345,979. Administrator Hester 

described the planned upgrades, including ADA ramps and grade improvements, and clarified that the 

balance was approximately 2 million before these funds would be allocated. He emphasized the 

necessity of these improvements for compliance and accessibility at the courthouse and family court. 

Chairman Wilson motioned to approve, seconded by Councilman Raines. Vote 6-0 to approve. 

b) 3rd Reading of Ordinance 2025-16  
Authorizing the execution and delivery of a fee in lieu of tax and special source revenue credit 

agreement by and between Chester County and Chester Asphalt Terminal LLC; providing for a 

fee in lieu of ad valorem taxes incentive; providing for a special source revenue credit; creating 
or modifying a joint county industrial and business park agreement between Chester County 

and York County so as to establish or enlarge the park; and other related matters. 
Councilman Raines motioned to approve, seconded by Vice Chair Mosley. Vote 5-1 to approve. 
Councilman Agee opposed due to the “multi-county industrial park.” 

 



 

3 | P a g e  
 

c) 3rd Reading of Ordinance 2025-17 
Authorizing the execution and delivery of a first amendment to fee-in-lieu of tax and incentive 

agreement, by and among Chester County, South Carolina (“county”), IKO Glass Fiber Inc. 

(“IKO Glass”), and IKO Mat Tech Inc. (“IKO Tech”), previously identified as Project Phoenix22, 
acting for themselves, one or more affiliates and/or other project sponsors (collectively, 

“company”), pursuant to which the company and the county agree to certain amended 

incentives and amended performance measures; and providing for other related matters. 
Vice Chair Mosley motioned to approve, seconded by Councilman Guy. Vote 5-1 to approve.  
Councilman Agee opposed. 

d) 3rd Reading of Ordinance 2025-18 

To repeal the county’s land development regulations, enacted December 11, 2002, as 
subsequently amended, and replace the same by enacting Chapter 2: Subdivision and Land 

Development Regulations, of the County’s Unified Development Ordinance; and to provide for 

other related matters. 
Planning and Development Director Jeremy Ward thanked the Council and Planning Commission for 

their significant effort in developing the new land development regulations, emphasizing that the 

process was thorough and tailored specifically for Chester County rather than outsourced. He noted the 

recent addition of crawl spaces to the ordinance and expressed hope that the new regulations would be 

a valuable tool for the planning commission in managing future growth and making informed decisions.  

Vice Chair Mosley motioned to approve, seconded by Councilman Raines. Vote 6-0 to approve. 

e) 3rd Reading of Ordinance 2025-19 

Amending Ordinance No. 2018-11, as amended and clarified by Ordinance No. 2022-13, as 

further amended by Ordinance No. 2023-15, to provide for the allocation of fee in lieu of tax 

revenues for some property located in the county; and providing for other related matters. 

Councilman Guy shared that he had received feedback from citizens and firemen regarding ordinance 

2025-19 but had not heard any convincing reasons against its approval. He emphasized that his decisions 

are made for the benefit of Chester County citizens and expressed full support for the ordinance. 

Councilman Guy encouraged fire districts to submit requests if they need resources, assuring them that 

their needs would be considered. 

Councilman Raines motioned to approve, seconded by Vice Chair Mosley. Vote 5-1 to approve. 
Councilman Agee opposed. 

f) Resolution 2025-25 – Authorizing the transfer of certain personal property; and providing for 

other related matters. 
Councilman Raines motioned to approve, seconded by Councilman Killian. Vote 6-0 to approve. 

 

7. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
Administrator Hester began by issuing a public thanks to IKO representatives for their cooperation and 

responsiveness to community concerns. He provided an update on the West Chester Fire Station addition, noting 

some delays due to design changes but reporting that construction is progressing, with completion expected by 

March or April. Administrator Hester also shared results from a vehicle study at the Beltline convenience site, 

revealing an average of 800 cars per day and prompting consideration of additional staffing to manage the 

workload. He concluded by commending the team’s efforts to keep county projects moving forward despite 

various challenges. 

 

 



 

4 | P a g e  
 

8. CONSENT AGENDA 
Vice Chair Mosley motioned to approve, seconded by Councilman Raines. Vote 6-0 to approve. 
 
a) 2nd Reading of Ordinance 2025-20 

Authorizing the conveyance of easement rights to Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC, for the purpose of 

utility infrastructure construction and maintenance at property located at or about the Chester 
County Courthouse, designated as TMS #201-11-01-007-000; and providing for other related 

matters. 

 
b) 3rd Reading of CCTA25-07 – Chester County Zoning Ordinance – Text Amendments 

Chapter 4 § 4-111 RG-1 – Multi-Family Residential Uses 

Add Text: 
RG-1   PERMITTED USES NAICS 

CODE 

NAICS 

DESCRIPTION 

PARKING SPACES 

REQUIRED 

1. Urban Conservation Subdivision   

 

814 

111 

112 

Private households 

(except mobile or 

manufactured homes) 

in the setting of an 

urban conservation 

subdivision, along 

with associated 

permitted uses 

As required in 

subdivision code 

 

 

c) 3rd Reading of CCTA25-08 – Chester County Zoning Ordinance – Text Amendments 

Chapter 4 § 4-112 RG-1 – Multi-Family Residential District Regulations 

Add Text: 

The following regulations apply to all uses in RG-1 districts: 
 
Minimum residential lot area:  

 
Single family: With public water and sewer: 10,000 square feet. 

With public water; individual sewer: ½ acre as directed by DHEC. 

With individual water and sewer: 1 acre as directed by DHEC. 

With public water and sewer in an Urban Conservation Subdivision: 

6,500 square feet. 

Multi-family: 12,000 square feet for first dwelling unit; 

3,000 square feet for second dwelling unit; thereafter 2,500 square 

feet for each additional dwelling unit. 

 

Minimum lot width at building 

line: 

 

With public water and sewer: 70 feet. 

With public water and sewer in an Urban Conservation Subdivision: 

60 feet. 

Other: 130 feet. 
 
Minimum side yard: 

 
Principal structure - 15 feet from interior side lot line 

                                 10 feet from interior side lot line in an Urban   

                                 Conservation Subdivision. 

Accessory structure - 6 feet from interior side lot line. 

 

 



 

5 | P a g e  
 

 

d) 3rd Reading of CCTA25-09 – Chester County Zoning Ordinance – Text Amendment 

Chapter 4 § 4-113 RG-2 - General Residential District Uses. 

Add Text: 
 

RG-2   PERMITTED USES 

 

NAICS 

CODE 

 

NAICS 

DESCRIPTION 

 

PARKING SPACES 

REQUIRED 

 
1. Urban Conservation Subdivision   

 

 
814 

111 

112 

 
Private households 

(except mobile or 

manufactured homes) 

in the setting of an 

urban conservation 

subdivision, along with 

associated permitted 

uses 

 
As required in 

subdivision code 

 

e) 3rd Reading of CCTA25-10 – Chester County Zoning Ordinance – Text Amendments 

Chapter 4 § 4-114 RG-2 - General Residential District Uses. 
Add Text: 
 
Minimum residential lot area:  

 
Single family: With public water and sewer: 10,000 square feet. 

With public water; individual sewer: ½ acre as directed by DHEC. 

With individual water and sewer: 1 acre as directed by DHEC. 

With public water and sewer in an Urban Conservation Subdivision: 

6,500 square feet. 

Multi-family: 12,000 square feet for first dwelling unit; 

3,000 square feet for second dwelling unit; thereafter 2,500 square 

feet for each additional dwelling unit. 

Manufactured home parks: eight (8) acres. 
 

Minimum lot width at building 

line: 

 

With public water and sewer: 70 feet. 

With public water and sewer in an Urban Conservation Subdivision: 

60 feet. 

Other: 130 feet. 
 

Minimum side yard: 

 

Principal structure - 15 feet from interior side lot line 

                                 10 feet from interior side lot line in an Urban   

                                 Conservation Subdivision. 

Accessory structure - 6 feet from interior side lot line. 

 

 

 



 

6 | P a g e  
 

f) 3rd Reading of CCTA25-11 – Chester County Zoning Ordinance – Text Amendments 
Chapter 4 § 4-115 LC – Limited Commercial District Uses. 

Add Text: 
 

LC - PERMITTED USES 
 
NAICS 

CODE 

 
NAICS 

DESCRIPTION 

 
PARKING 

SPACES 

REQUIRED 
 
2. Urban Conservation Subdivision   

 

 
814 

111 

112 

 
Private households (except 

mobile or manufactured 

homes) in the setting of an 

urban conservation 

subdivision, along with 

associated permitted uses 

 

As required in 

subdivision 

code 

 

g) 3rd Reading of CCTA25-12 – Chester County Zoning Ordinance – Text Amendments 

Chapter 4 § 4-116 LC – Limited Commercial District Uses. 
Add Text: 

The following regulations apply to all uses in LC districts: 

 

h) 3rd Reading of CCTA25-13 – Chester County Zoning Ordinance – Text Amendments 

Chapter 4 § 4-103 R-2 – Rural Two District Uses. 

Add Text: 
 

 

Minimum residential lot 

area: 

Single family: With public water and sewer: 10,000 square feet. 

With public water; individual sewer: ½ acre or as directed by DHEC. 

With individual water and sewer: 1 acre or as directed by DHEC. 

With public water and sewer in an Urban Conservation Subdivision: 

6,500 square feet. 

Multi-family: 1 acre. 

Minimum lot width at 

building line: 

With public water and sewer: 70 feet. 

With public water and sewer in an Urban Conservation Subdivision:  

60 feet. 

Other: 130 feet. 

 
   R-2 CONDITIONAL USES 
[approved by Zoning Administrator if all conditions are met] 

 

NAICS 

CODE 

 
NAICS 

DESCRIPTION 

 
PARKING 

SPACES 

REQUIRED 
 
1. Rural Conservation Subdivision, 

     provided all following conditions are met: 

a. The total site plan has at least twenty (20) 

gross acres and classifies as a medium, 

major, or mega subdivision. 

b. The site plan is less than one hundred 

(100) homes. 

c. The entrance to the subdivision is half 

(0.5) a mile or less, in a direct line, from a 

state or federal highway. 

 
814 

111 

112 

113 

Private households in 

the setting of a rural 

conservation 

subdivision, along 

with associated 

permitted uses 

 

As required in 

subdivision 

code 



 

7 | P a g e  
 

i) 3rd Reading of CCTA25-14 – Chester County Zoning Ordinance – Text Amendments 
Chapter 4 § 4-103 R-2 – Rural Two District Uses. 

Add Text: 
 
 

 

j) 3rd Reading of CCTA25-15 – Chester County Zoning Ordinance – Text Amendments 

Chapter 4 § 4-104 R-2 – Rural Two District Regulations. 
Add Text: 

The following regulations apply to all uses in R-2 districts. 
 
Minimum lot area: 

  

 
Residential: 2 acres 

Rural Conservation Subdivision: 1 acre. 

Other uses: None, or as specified in conditions 

 

k) 2nd Reading of CCMA25-18 CDP Great Falls LLC requests a portion of Tax Map # 161-01-00-059-

000 (1.3 acres) located off Ridgeway Road, Great Falls, SC 29055 from Multi-family Residential 
District (RG-1) to General Commercial District (GC). The Planning Commission voted 6-0 to 

approve. 

 

l) 2nd Reading of CCMA25-19 ICB America, LP, a Georgia Limited Partnership requests Tax Map # 
080-04-05-026-000 (1.4 acres) located at 527 Great Falls Highway, Chester, SC 29706 from 

General Commercial District (GC) to Restricted Industrial District (ID-1). The Planning 

Commission voted 6-0 to approve. 
 

m) 2nd Reading of CCMA25-20 ICB America, LP, a Georgia Limited Partnership requests Tax Map # 

080-04-05-027-000 (0.102 +/- acres) located next to 527 Great Falls Highway, Chester, SC 29706 
from General Commercial District (GC) to Restricted Industrial District (ID-1). The Planning 

Commission voted 6-0 to approve. 

 

 
 

 
   R-2   SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS 
   [approved by Board of Zoning Appeals after hearing] 

 
NAICS 

CODE 

 
NAICS 

DESCRIPTION 

 
PARKING 

SPACES 

REQUIRED 
 
1. Rural Conservation Subdivision, 

     provided all following conditions are met: 

a. The total site plan has at least twenty (20) gross 

acres and classifies as a medium, major, or mega 

subdivision. 

b. The site plan consists of less than one hundred 

(100) homes or is within one (1) mile of a state or 

federal highway, unless an exceptional plan is 

presented for agricultural or environmental 

conservation. 

c. Any necessary conditions are imposed for safety, 

traffic, and impact on the district. 

d. The use is compatible with the district. 

 
814 

111 

112 

113 

Private households 

in the setting of a 

rural conservation 

subdivision, along 

with associated 

permitted uses 

 

As required 

in 

subdivision 

code 



 

8 | P a g e  
 

9. OLD BUSINESS 
 

a) From Chester County Transportation Meeting: 

1. Reimbursement approval for Road and Sign Materials to the Chester County Roads 
Department in the amount of $24,960.15 
Councilman Guy motioned to approve, seconded by Councilman Raines. Vote 6-0 to approve. 

2. Grant match funding approval in the amount of $50,000 for TAP Grant 
Councilman Raines motioned to approve, seconded by Vice Chair Mosley. Vote 6-0 to approve. 

3. Abandonment of Coldstream Circle repairs 
Councilman Raines motioned to approve, seconded by Vice Chair Mosley. Vote 6-0 to approve. 

4. Recommendation of roads to be paved for 2026 using annual C-Funds 
Vice Chair Mosley motioned to approve Option 2, seconded by Councilman Raines.  
Vote 6-0 to approve. 

 

10. NEW BUSINESS 

 

a) Animal Control Department Update 

Jessica Roof, Director 
Animal Control Director Jessica Roof reported significant progress over the past year. She updated 
council on improved animal management software, a live website feed for impounded animals, and 

facility enhancements such as shade tarps and new windows. Director Roof stated that the department 
expanded community engagement, volunteer participation, and partnerships with local organizations. 

She updated on achievements that included over 1,000 animals altered through spay/neuter initiatives, 
staff completing critical certifications, and participation in the Treat app for game-based fundraising. 
Director Roof also shared that the new animal shelter is on schedule, with features like expanded medical 

space and enhanced adoption areas, and preparations are underway to ensure a smooth transition to 

the new facility. 

 

b) Consideration of approval of multi-year contract with Flock Safety (Flock Group, Inc.)  

Administrator Hester explained that the county will use earmarked funds to enter a five-year contract 

with Flock Safety for security cameras at Exit 65, addressing safety, security, and lighting needs in the 

area. He detailed that the contract totals $83,000 for five years and is funded by money set aside by the 

county’s delegation. Administrator Hester noted that after five years, the county can decide whether to 

renew the contract or pursue newer technology, as advancements are expected. The cameras’ placement 

and features were determined in collaboration with the Sheriff’s Office and the Gateway Steering 

Committee. 

Councilman Raines motioned to approve, seconded by Vice Chair Mosley. Vote 6-0 to approve. 

 
c) Discussion concerning County Council created Fire Districts 

Vice Chair Erin Mosley, Council Member At-Large 
Vice Chair Mosley addressed concerns about recent changes affecting county council-created fire 

districts. She clarified that the new ordinance is not meant to take resources away from any district or 

citizen, but to ensure that all fire districts meet consistent standards and that taxpayer dollars are used 

effectively. Vice Chair Mosley emphasized the council’s commitment to improving safety and services for 

all residents, highlighted their positive track record, and encouraged open discussion to address any 

concerns. 



 

9 | P a g e  
 

Councilman Guy explained that despite receiving calls and feedback, he has not heard any concrete 

reasons why the new ordinance would harm fire districts. He emphasized that the ordinance is focused 

on accountability and transparency in the use of tax dollars for public safety. Councilman Guy stated that 

the council’s role is to monitor and ensure responsible spending for the benefit of citizens, and he believes 

the majority of residents support this approach. 

 

11. BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

 
12. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Councilman Guy motioned to enter executive session, seconded by Vice Chair Mosley.  

Vote 6-0 to enter executive session. 

a) Discussion of matters relating to the proposed location, expansion, or the provision of 
services encouraging location or expansion of industries or other businesses in the area 

served by the public body – Project P2565 

 
b) Legal advice/employment matters related to county council created fire districts 

 

13. ACTIONS FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Councilman Raines motion to return to regular session, seconded by Councilman Killian. Vote 6-0 to return to 

regular session. 
a) Action taken regarding Project P2565 

Chairman Wilson stated this item was taken as information only. 
b) Action taken regarding county council created fire districts 

1. Councilman Corey Guy motioned for a training requirement that all county-created fire district boards 
to clearly define their scope of work, authority, and responsibilities under Chester County ordinances and 

policies. 

2. Council Guy stated he would also like to request an ordinance review by the Chester County 
Administrator and Chester County Attorney to conduct a thorough review of all ordinances related to 
county-created fire district boards, including their scope and authority. Recommendation of council upon 

completion of review: the County Administrator and County Attorney should provide County Council with 
a recommendation to council to ensure the scope and authority of the fire districts and board do not 

conflict with County Council or any county policies and request that the board have training after these 
recommendations. 

3. Also motion that the firemen in these county fire districts adhere to at a minimum to all Chester County 
policies. 

4. I ask that all county fire districts comply with any requests for documents, records, or information 

submitted by Chester County Emergency Services, Chester County legal counsel, or Chester County 
Administrator. Fire districts must provide these requested documents within ten (10) days unless the 

County Administrator notifies them in writing of a schedule change or a time change. 
5. All districts shall submit non-contract services, whether it's cutting grass or painting or anything of that 

nature, with the dollar amount and each contract shall be identified with that service. 
Seconded by Councilman Killian. Vote 6-0 to approve. 
 

Councilman Guy motioned that all the things mentioned apply to every board that we administer, 

example: library board, airport board, all county boards—that every board adhere to this motion. 
(Ordinance). Seconded by Councilman Killian. Vote 6-0 to approve. 

 



 

10 | P a g e  
 

 

 

14.  COUNCIL COMMENTS  
 
Councilman Agee mentioned the successful fundraiser for Melissa Westbrook, a dispatcher for Chester 
County, that has had serious health issues. He asked that the county keep remembering her. 
 
Chairman Wilson made a personal statement on the events of last week stating he was deeply shaken and 
disturbed by the assassination of Charlie Kirk. He stated that his prayers are with all the people he leaves 
behind, especially his wife and two young children. Chairman Wilson stated this should never happen in 
America and that violence or murder is never an acceptable response to someone else’s ideas or words. 
Chairman Wilson went further to say that for those who found satisfaction in his death, tried to excuse his 
murder due to disagreeing with his beliefs, or felt the need to tell others they felt no sorrow for his murder, 
he urges them to examine their own heart. Chairman Wilson stated he prays for our country and Chester 
County and that Americans respond to disagreement with dialogue, courage, and respect—not hatred or 
violence. 
 

15. ADJOURN 
Vice Chair Mosley motioned to adjourn, seconded by Councilman Guy. Vote 6-0 to adjourn. 

 
Time of adjournment: 8:55pm 

 

Kristie Donaldson 
Clerk to County Council 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 



Chester County Council  
Special Called Meeting  

 

1 | P a g e  
 

R. Carlisle Roddey Government Building 
1476 J A Cochran Bypass | Chester, SC 29706 

Tuesday, September 16, 2025 | 9:30AM 

 

MINUTES 
Present: Chairman Pete Wilson, Vice Chair Erin Mosley, Councilman Bobby Raines, Councilman Corey Guy, 
Councilman John Agee, County Administrator Brian Hester, Human Resources Director Bonita Mobley 

Absent: Councilman William Killian 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Wilson called the meeting to order at 9:33am and stated a quorum of council was present. 

2. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Vice Chair Mosley motioned to enter executive session, seconded by Councilman Raines. Vote 5-0 to enter. 

a) Discussion of personnel matter relating to the Clerk to Council 

 

3. ACTIONS FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Councilman Guy motioned to return to regular session, seconded by Vice Chair Mosley. Vote 5-0 to return. 

Chairman Wilson stated the item was taken as information only. 
a) Action taken regarding Clerk to Council personnel matter  

4. ADJOURN 
Vice Chair Mosley motioned to adjourn, seconded by Councilman Raines. Vote 5-0 to adjourn. 

 

 
Time of adjournment: 12:45pm 

 

Kristie Donaldson 
Clerk to County Council 

 

 

 



Chester County Council  
Special Called Meeting  

 

1 | P a g e  
 

R. Carlisle Roddey Government Building 
1476 J A Cochran Bypass | Chester, SC 29706 

Wednesday, September 24, 2025 | 5:00PM 

MINUTES 
Present: Chairman Pete Wilson, Vice Chair Erin Mosley, Councilman William Killian, Councilman Bobby 
Raines, Councilman Corey Guy, Councilman John Agee, County Attorney Nicole Workman, Attorney Michael 
Kozlarek, Clerk to Council Kristie Donaldson 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Chairman Wilson called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm and declared a quorum of council 
members present. 

2. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Vice Chair Mosley motioned to enter executive session, seconded by Councilman Raines. 
Councilman Agee stated that regarding the Richburg Fire Board, Mr. Steel was at the beach and 
was not notified. Administrator Hester stated that it was an executive session item. Councilman 
Agee stated that he would not be able to be represented by an attorney, and he could not have 
this discussion. Vote 5-1 to enter into executive session. Councilman Agee opposed. 

a) Discussion of personnel matter relating to the Clerk to Council 
 

b) Richburg Fire Board Organizational Matters 
 

3. ACTIONS FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Councilman Raines motioned to return to regular session, seconded by Vice Chair Mosley. 
Vote 6-0 to return to regular session. 

a) Action taken regarding Clerk to Council personnel matter  
Chairman Wilson stated this item was taken as information only. 

b) Action taken regarding Richburg Fire Board organizational matters 
Vice Chair Mosley motioned to remove, without cause, each board member of the Board of 
Commissioners of the Richburg Fire Protection District. Seconded by Councilman Raines. 
Vote 5-1 to approve. Councilman Agee opposed. 
 
Councilman Raines made a motion for Chester County, South Carolina Emergency 
Ordinance of September 24, 2025 pertaining to Richburg Fire Protection District and 
removing each board member of the Richburg Fire Protection Board; devolving 
administrative authority of the district on the county; authorizing the county administrator 
directly to administer the district as a part of the county; authorizing the county 
administrator to take administrative actions regarding the district; and providing for other 



 

2 | P a g e  
 

related matters. Seconded by Vice Chair Mosley. Vote 5-1 to approve. Councilman Agee 
opposed. 
Councilman Raines motioned first reading in title only of an ordinance approving, 
confirming, and ratifying the removal of each member of the Richburg Fire Protection 
District Board; devolving administrative authority of the district on county council; (c) 
authorizing the county administrator directly to administer the district as a part of the 
county; (d) amending portions of the Chester County Code of Ordinances to conform to 
such changes and to provide for other changes, for example, Division 16, Sections 2-732 
through and including 2-736; and (e) providing for other related matters. Seconded by Vice 
Chair Mosley. Vote 5-1 to approve. Councilman Agee opposed. 

4. ADJOURN 

Councilman Guy motioned to adjourn, seconded by Councilman Raines. Vote 5-0 to adjourn. 
Councilman Agee did not vote. 

 

Time of adjournment: 7:33pm 

 

Kristie Donaldson 
Clerk to Council 

 





 

PAGE 2 OF 3 

CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

By:               
Pete Wilson 

[SEAL]          Chairman, County Council 

Attest: 

              
Kristie Donaldson 
Clerk to County Council 

First Reading:  September 2, 2025 
Second Reading:  September 15, 2025 
Public Hearing:  October 6, 2025 
Third Reading:   October 6, 2025 

  



 

PAGE 3 OF 3 

EXHIBIT A 
SUBSTANTIALLY FINAL FORM OF EASEMENT 

[SEE 3 PAGES, ATTACHED] 



For Grantee’s Internal Use:  

Work Order #: 55452496-20  1  

Prepared by: Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC 
Return to: Duke Energy Carolinas, LLC 

Attn: Southeastern Land Company 
Post Office Box 1241 

Parcel # 201-11-01-007-000 
 

 

Conway, SC 29528   

 

EASEMENT 

State of South Carolina  

County of Chester 

 

THIS EASEMENT (“Easement”) is made this _____ day of ___________________ 20_______, 

from  CHESTER COUNTY, A BODY POLITIC AND CORPORATE UNDER THE LAWS OF THE 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA (“Grantor”, whether one or more), to DUKE ENERGY 

CAROLINAS, LLC, a North Carolina limited liability company  (“Grantee”). 

 

Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of One and 00/100 Dollar ($1.00) and other good and 

valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, does hereby grant 

unto Grantee a perpetual and non-exclusive easement, to construct, reconstruct, operate, patrol, maintain, 

repair, replace, relocate, add to, modify, and remove electric and communication lines including, but not 

limited to, all necessary supporting structures, and all other appurtenant apparatus and equipment for the 

transmission and distribution of electrical energy, and for technological purposes related to the operation 

of the electric facilities and for the communication purposes of Incumbent Local Exchange Carriers 

(collectively, “Facilities”).  

Grantor is the owner of that certain property described in that instrument recorded in Deed Book 

HH, Page 219, Chester County Register of Deeds (“Property”). 

 The Facilities shall be underground, except as needed on or above the ground to support the 

underground Facilities, and located in, upon, along, under, through, and across a portion of the Property 

within an easement area described as follows: 

 A strip of land twenty feet (20’) in uniform width, lying equidistant on both sides of a centerline, 

which centerline shall be established by the center of the Facilities as installed, along with an area ten feet 

(10’) wide on all sides of the foundation of any Grantee enclosure/transformer, vault and/or manhole, 

(hereinafter referred to as the “Easement Area”). 

The rights granted herein include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 

1. Grantee shall have the right of ingress and egress over the Easement Area, Property, and any 

adjoining lands now owned or hereinafter acquired by Grantor (using lanes, driveways, and 

adjoining public roads where practical as determined by Grantee). 

  



For Grantee’s Internal Use:  

Work Order #: 55452496-20  2  

2. Grantee shall have the right to trim, cut down, and remove from the Easement Area, at any time 

or times and using safe and generally accepted arboricultural practices, trees, limbs, undergrowth, 

other vegetation, and obstructions. 

3. Grantee shall have the right to trim, cut down, and remove from the Property, at any time or times 

and using safe and generally accepted arboricultural practices, dead, diseased, weak, dying, or 

leaning trees or limbs, which, in the opinion of Grantee, might fall upon the Easement Area or 

interfere with the safe and reliable operation of the Facilities. 

4. Grantor shall not place, or permit the placement of, any structures, improvements, facilities, or 

obstructions, within or adjacent to the Easement Area, which may interfere with the exercise of 

the rights granted herein to Grantee. Grantee shall have the right to remove any such structure, 

improvement, facility, or obstruction at the expense of Grantor. 

5. Excluding the removal of vegetation, structures, improvements, facilities, and obstructions as 

provided herein, Grantee shall promptly repair or cause to be repaired any physical damage to the 

surface area of the Easement Area and Property resulting from the exercise of the rights granted 

herein to Grantee. Such repair shall be to a condition which is reasonably close to the condition 

prior to the damage, and shall only be to the extent such damage was caused by Grantee or its 

contractors or employees. 

6. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary above, the general location of the Facilities is shown on 

the sketch attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference. The final and 

definitive location of the Easement Area shall become established by and upon the final 

installation and erection of the Facilities by Grantee in substantial compliance with Exhibit A. 

7. All other rights and privileges reasonably necessary, in Grantee’s sole discretion, for the safe, 

reliable, and efficient installation, operation, and maintenance of the Facilities. 

 

The terms Grantor and Grantee shall include the respective heirs, successors, and assigns of 

Grantor and Grantee. The failure of Grantee to exercise or continue to exercise or enforce any of the 

rights herein granted shall not be construed as a waiver or abandonment of the right thereafter at any time, 

or from time to time, to exercise any and all such rights. 

 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said rights, privilege, and easement unto Grantee, its successors, 

licensees, and assigns, forever. Grantor warrants and covenants that Grantor has the full right and 

authority to convey to Grantee this perpetual Easement, and that Grantee shall have quiet and peaceful 

possession, use and enjoyment of the same. 



For Grantee’s Internal Use:  

Work Order #: 55452496-20  3  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has signed this Easement under seal effective this _____ day 

of ___________________, 20_____. 

 

 CHESTER COUNTY 

Witnesses:  a body politic and corporate under the laws of the  

                                                                                     South Carolina 

 

    (SEAL) 

(Witness #1) By:  _________________________  

                                                                                     Title:_________________________ 

 

____________________________________ 
(Witness #2) 

 

 

STATE OF __________________________ 

 

COUNTY OF ________________________ 

 

 

I, _______________________________, a Notary Public of ____________________ County, State of 

South Carolina, certify that By:  _________________________, as ________________________ of 

CHESTER COUNTY, a body politic and corporate under the laws of the State of South Carolina, personally 

appeared before me this day and acknowledged the due execution of the foregoing EASEMENT. 

 

Witness my hand and notarial seal, this ____ day of _____________________, 20_____. 

 

 Notary Public: _________________________ 

 Commission expires: ____________________ 



 

 

 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  )  

)  PROCLAMATION 

CHESTER COUNTY    )  

 

 

 

A PROCLAMATION IN RECOGNITION OF FIRE PREVENTION WEEK 
 

WHEREAS, the safety and well-being of Chester County residents is a top priority of local government and 

emergency services;  

WHEREAS, Fire Prevention Week is observed annually during the second week of October in commemoration 

of the Great Chicago Fire of 1871, a tragic event that claimed many lives and destroyed thousands of structures; 

WHEREAS, Fire Prevention Week, along with Fire Prevention Month, serves as a crucial reminder of the 

importance of fire safety in our homes, schools, businesses, and public spaces; 

WHEREAS, the purpose of Fire Prevention Week is to raise public awareness about fire hazards, educate 

families and communities about essential fire safety practices, and promote proactive steps that can help prevent 

fires and save lives;  

WHEREAS, the Chester County Fire Departments, emergency responders, and safety educators work diligently 

throughout the year to protect lives and property, and to educate citizens about fire prevention and 

preparedness; 

WHEREAS, all citizens of Chester County are encouraged to take part in fire safety education efforts, practice 

fire drills, install and maintain smoke alarms, and create escape plans to enhance personal and community 

safety; 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Pete Wilson, Chairman on behalf of Chester County Council, do hereby proclaim the 

week of October 5-11, 2025, as Fire Prevention Week in Chester County, South Carolina and urges all citizens 

to participate in fire prevention activities and to commit to practicing fire safety year-round. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the 

Seal of Chester County to be fixed this 6th day of October, in the Year of 

our Lord, Two Thousand, Twenty-Five. 
 

 

 

 

Pete Wilson, Chairman 

Chester County Council  

ATTEST: 

 

 

   

Kristie Donaldson 

Clerk to Council  



CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

ORDINANCE NO. 2025-22 

APPROVING, CONFIRMING, AND RATIFYING THE 
REMOVAL OF EACH MEMBER OF THE RICHBURG FIRE 
PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD; DEVOLVING 
ADMINISTRATIVE AUTHORITY OF THE DISTRICT ON THE 
COUNTY COUNCIL; (C) AUTHORIZING THE COUNTY 
ADMINISTRATOR DIRECTLY TO ADMINISTER THE 
DISTRICT AS A PART OF THE COUNTY; (D) AMENDING 
PORTIONS OF THE CHESTER COUNTY CODE OF 
ORDINANCES TO CONFORM TO SUCH CHANGES AND TO 
PROVIDE FOR OTHER CHANGES, FOR EXAMPLE, DIVISION 
16, SECTIONS 2-732 THROUGH AND INCLUDING 2-736; AND 
(E) PROVIDING FOR OTHER RELATED MATTERS.

WHEREAS, the County, by and through its County Council, is authorized and empowered to provide for 
the County’s internal operation according to South Carolina Constitution Article VIII, section 17, and the 
Home Rule Act of 1975, including section 4-9-10, et seq. of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as 
amended; and South Carolina Code Annotated section 4-9-30, section 4-9-130, section 4-9-170, and section 4-
19-20, and other portions of generally applicable state law authorize the County to enact ordinances to address
the creation of special tax/fire protection districts, and the creation and removal of boards and commissions
and appointment and removal of members, and to address such and other related matters;

WHEREAS, the County, by and through its County Council, and solely as an instrumentality of County 
Council, created the Richburg Fire Protection District (“District”) and constituted a board of commissioners 
to administer the District; 

WHEREAS, for example, South Carolina Code Annotated section 4-9-30, and section 4-19-20, and the 
Code of Ordinance of the County of Chester, South Carolina (“County Code”), Division 16, Section 2-732 
through and including 2-736, provide the County Council with the authority to provide for the direct 
administration of a special tax district (such as the District) as a part of the County; 

WHEREAS, the County previously enacted Section 2-266(b) of the County Code, which provides for 
removal of the member of any board or commission, which is appointed by the County Council, by a majority 
vote of the County Council; 

WHEREAS, by vote of the County Council on September 24, 2025, the County Council removed, without 
cause, each board member of the Board of Commissioners of the Richburg Fire Protection District; and 

WHEREAS, by Emergency Ordinance, adopted September 24, 2025, a recorded copy of which is attached 
to this Ordinance as Exhibit A (“Emergency Ordinance”), the County provided, among other things, 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE COUNTY COUNCIL, IN MEETING, DULY NOTICED AND 
ASSEMBLED, ORDAINS: 

Section 1. Findings. Each “Whereas,” above, is confirmed as a finding of the County Council. 

Section 2. Board Member Removal. The vote of County Council to remove, without cause, each board 
member of the Board of Commissioners of the Richburg Fire Protection District, is hereby approved, 
confirmed, and ratified. 

Section 3. Emergency Ordinance. Except to the extent of any, if any, conflict with the other parts of 
this Ordinance, the Emergency Ordinance, including its findings and conclusions, is hereby approved, 
confirmed, and ratified. 



PAGE 2 OF 4 

Section 4. Amendments to County Code. 

(a) Section 2-732 is amended by deleting each reference to “County Supervisor” contained therein and 
replacing the same with “County Administrator.” 

(b) Section 2-736 is stricken in its entirety and replaced with the following: 

(a) The affairs of the district shall be directly administered as a part of the 
County, by and through the County’s normal departmental structure and 
administrative process. 

(b) The county council may provide for a different form of administration 
of the district. 

Section 5. Repealer. Each portion of the County Code, ordinance, resolution, regulation, order, or other 
directive of the County, and each part of the same, in conflict with this Ordinance, is, to the extent of that 
conflict, repealed, and replaced by this Ordinance. 

Section 6. Codification. The County shall codify the contents of this Ordinance online as soon as 

practicable and in print as part of the County’s next, regular, re-codification. 

Section 7. Reservation of Code Sections. The remaining available Sections of the City Code, including 
specifically, Section 2-737, through and including Section 2-749, remain reserved for future use. 

Section 8. Rights Reserved to County. This Ordinance does not vest any rights in any person or entity, 
and the County reserves the right to repeal or amend this Ordinance and the County Code, at any time, from 
time to time, as often as the County, in its sole discretion, deems appropriate. 

Section 9. Severability. If any part of this Ordinances is unenforceable for any reason, then the remainder 
of this Ordinance remains in full force and effect. 

Section 10. Effective Date. This Ordinance is effective immediately after its enactment. 

[ONE SIGNATURE PAGE AND ONE EXHIBIT FOLLOW] 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE SUBSTANTIVELY BLANK] 

  



PAGE 3 OF 4 

CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

By:               
Pete Wilson 

[SEAL]          Chairman, County Council 

Attest: 

              
Kristie Donaldson 
Clerk to County Council 

First Reading:  September 24, 2025 
Second Reading:  October 6, 2025 
Public Hearing:  November 2, 2025 
Third Reading:   November 2, 2025 

  



PAGE 4 OF 4 

EXHIBIT A 
EMERGENCY ORDINANCE, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 24, 2025 

[SEE 3 PAGES, ATTACHED] 



    
       

     
  

         
      

       
        

          
       

       
      
 

                
               

                    

 

                
               

                    
               

                
                    

                 
        

                

              

    

               

               
                  

          

              

                   

     

           
                

               

         

              
           

                

                  
              

            

              
                

                     



  
    

    
    

  

    

                
                     

                 

    

         

                  

             

              
              

                 

             
             

            
  

                
               

           

              

                 
    

           

 

               
              

   

               

                    

          

                 

         

                  
                   

                  

                

                  
              

                  

   

 



  

    

    

    

    

               

    

   
  

    

  

    

  
   
  
  
  
 

   



PAGE 1 OF 2 

SOUTH CAROLINA  ) RESOLUTION 2025-26 OF 
    ) CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
CHESTER COUNTY  ) 

AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER OF CERTAIN PERSONAL 
PROPERTY; AND PROVIDING FOR OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 

WHEREAS, South Carolina Code Annotated section 4-9-30(2) authorizes Chester County (“County”) to 
sell or otherwise dispose of personal property; and 

WHEREAS, the County Council (“Council”) for the County, as the County’s governing body has 
determined that it is in the best interest of the County and its citizens to sell, by auction or other similar method, 
the item(s) of personal property as are listed in Exhibit A (collectively, “Personal Property”), which is attached 
to and incorporated in this Resolution by reference; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL THAT THE COUNTY IS 
AUTHORIZED THE SALE, BY AUCTION OF OTHER SIMILAR METHOD, THE PERSONAL 
PROPERTY; 

It is further resolved that the County Administrator, and/or his designee (each, an “Authorized Official”), 
is authorized (a) to prepare the form of any reasonably necessary and prudent transfer documents that are 
customarily used for similar transactions in this State, and (b) to execute, attest, and deliver those documents 
that may be reasonably necessary and prudent to consummate the Personal Property’s transfer; and 

It is further resolved that such funds, if any, as are realized from the transfer of the Personal Property shall 
be deposited by the County Treasurer in the same account as the County Treasurer maintains for such funds 
as the County Council annually appropriates for use by the Chester County Sheriff’s Office and such funds 
shall be used to acquire firearms and related equipment. 

RESOLVED: October 6, 2025 

      CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

             
      Pete Wilson 
      Chairman, County Council 
[SEAL] 

Attest: 

      
Kristie Donaldson 
Clerk to County Council 

[ONE EXHIBIT FOLLOWS] 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE SUBSTANTIVELY BLANK] 

  



PAGE 2 OF 2 

EXHIBIT A 
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION 

Department Type Brand/Model Serial Number 

Sheriff’s Office Pistol Diamondback 380 ZC2061 

Sheriff’s Office Pistol Diamondback 380 ZC2068 

Sheriff’s Office Pistol Diamondback 380 ZC2072 

Sheriff’s Office Pistol Diamondback 380 ZC2082 

Sheriff’s Office Pistol Diamondback 380 ZC2083 

Sheriff’s Office Pistol Para Ordnance 1911 01383PR 

Sheriff’s Office Pistol Para Ordnance 1911  K956721 

Sheriff’s Office Shotgun Mossberg R571369 

Sheriff’s Office Shotgun Mossberg R571641 

Sheriff’s Office Shotgun Mossberg R571645 

 



CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

ORDINANCE NO. 2025-21 

PROVIDING FOR AN AMENDMENT TO ORDINANCE NO. 
2025-08, WHICH AMENDED ORDINANCE NO. 2021-18, WHICH 
PROVIDED FOR THE USE OF EXCESS FUNDING FOR 
“PROJECTS” AND/OR “CAPITAL PROJECTS” AS PROVIDED 
FOR UNDER ORDINANCE NO. 2019-5; AND PROVIDING FOR 
OTHER RELATED MATTERS. 

WHEREAS, the Chester County Council (“County Council”) enacted Ordinance No. 2019-5, on June 15, 
2020 (“2019 Ordinance”), authorizing, among other things, the imposition of and expenditure from a capital 
project sales and use tax, if and as approved by a referendum, to fund “projects” and/or “capital projects,” 
each as described in the 2019 Ordinance and in the Capital Project Sales Tax Act, located in South Carolina 
Code Annotated section 4-10-300, et seq. (collectively, “Act”); 

WHEREAS, the County Council enacted Ordinance No. 2021-18, on November 15, 2021 (“2021 
Ordinance”), providing for excess funding to be used for certain “projects” and/or “capital projects” as 
provided in the 2019 Ordinance; 

WHEREAS, the County Council enacted Ordinance No. 2025-8, on April 7, 2025 (“2025 Ordinance”), 
providing for excess funding to be used for certain additional “projects” and/or “capital projects” as provided 
in the 2019 Ordinance; 

WHEREAS, the Act provides the County Council with the authority to expend amounts collected in excess 
of amounts necessary to complete (as described in the Act, the approving referendum, and/or the 2019 
Ordinance) funding for projects listed in the approving referendum to be used to complete projects for which 
the tax is imposed; and 

WHEREAS, by this Ordinance, the County Council intends to continue to authorize such funding and 
amend the nature of “projects” and/or “capital projects” (as described in the 2019 Ordinance) for which such 
excess funding may be used. 

NOW, THEREFORE Chester County, South Carolina, ordains as follows: 

Section 1. Amendments. “Section 1. Amendments.” of the 2025 Ordinance, as a is amended by striking 
the paragraph, in its entirety, after the word “Amendments” and inserting therein the following: 

The County Council authorizes amounts collected in excess of amounts necessary to 
complete (as described in the approving referendum) funding for each of the projects 
referenced in the approving referendum to be used to provide funding for each of the 
following projects 

a. Project 1: Lewis Fire Department South Fork Substation, 

b. Project 2: North Chester Fire Department Substation, 

c. Projects 3/6 Rodman Sports Complex Improvements, 

d. Project 16: Countywide Emergency Communications Project, 

e. Project 26: Great Falls Whitewater, Trails and State Park Visitors Center, and 

f. Project 36/48: County Courthouse Improvements, 

provided, however, that, to the extent funding to complete a project listed above is 



sourced from other monies, then (a) no funding shall come from the tax imposed by 
the approving referendum and/or (b) funding from the tax previously expended shall 
be reimbursed to the tax fund from the alternate source. 

Section 2. Authorization for County Officials to Execute Documents. The Council authorizes the 
County Administrator, the County Treasurer, and Clerk to County Council to execute and consent to 
documents and instruments as may be necessary to effect this Ordinance’s intent. 

Section 3. Reservation to County. None of this Ordinance, the 2025 Ordinance, the 2021 Ordinance, or 
the 2019 Ordinance is a contract with any entity. The County reserves the right to amend this Ordinance, the 
2025 Ordinance, the 2021 Ordinance, and/or the 2019 Ordinance, at any time, from time to time, as often as 
the County, in its sole discretion, deems appropriate. 

Section 4. General Repealer. Each ordinance, resolution, order, policy, or similar directive, or any part 
of the same, in conflict with this Ordinance is, to the extent of that conflict, repealed. 

Section 5. Savings Clause. Any action taken or authorized to be taken under the 2025 Ordinance, the 2021 

Ordinance, and/or the 2019 Ordinance is treated as remaining in full force and effect for the purpose of 
sustaining any pending or vested right, as of the effective date of this Ordinance, and for the enforcement of 
rights, duties, and liabilities as they stood under the repealed or amended portion of the 2025 Ordinance, the 
2021 Ordinance, and/or the 2019 Ordinance. 

Section 6. Effective Date. This Ordinance is effective after its public hearing and third reading. 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE SUBSTANTIVELY BLANK] 

  



CHESTER COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

By:        
 Chairman, County Council 

[SEAL] 

Attest: 

        
Clerk to County Council 

First Reading:  September 15, 2025 
Second Reading:  October 6, 2025 
Public Hearing:  October 20, 2025 
Third Reading:  October 20, 2025 





      
        
          

   

   

     

       

  
         

         

      

       

     

   

    

          
      

        

      

        
         

         
       

          
         

       

     
   

        
        

     

         

        



   
 

   

  

   

  

    
   

   
   

     

  

               
     

             
 

 

 
    

     
        

 



 
 

   

  

  

  

  

    

   

      

 

   
  

   

 

 

 

 

      

   

   

 



     

   
         

           

   

             

      

       
         

        

  

         

         
        

   

 

 
          
  

   

   

 

    

     

   

  

  

 

   

    



    

     

         

           
   

      

              

      

       
        

        

  

        

         

      
  

   

    
  

    

    

   

    

    

   

  

  

   

    



   
     

  

               
                                                                       

 
          

 

        
            
       
        

       
            

            
       

      

           
             

        
          

     
     

 

       
          

        
       

      
      

   

   
    

 
    

          

               
                        

   
         

  

    

            



   
    

 
     

  
 

 
 

 
  

   

    

   

   

 

 

                                
                                 

                 

               
                         

                            
                             

                
                          
               

                                                                                                                    
                         

                                  
                              
                             
                            

                                
                            

                               
                         

                            
                           
                      

                               
                          

                                 
     

                          
       

  

             
         

                               
                               

       

   

  

  
    

  

   
       
     

    

  
     

   
  

 
    

     
      

 
    
       

   

 
 

    
       

   
  

   
 

   

   



    

     

   

   

   

     

    
              

   

    

     

     

 

  

  

     

 



  
                           

                    
  

                                          
  

      
                

   

 
            

       

          
           

  
           

                               
        

    
 

    
       

          
       

         
      

                        
                                                      

               
     

  
                

                         
         

                   
           

              
  

   
       

 
    

    
          

 
 

   
                

             
      

     
    

          
   

               
  

          
                 

            
               

    

      
          

  
                 

  

 
             

     
        

                   
                      

   
    

             
   

  
 

 
   

 
   

 
 

      
 

   
 

       
     

    
                    

                  

 
     

 

           
   

   
 

                

                    
   

                 
    

   
               

    
  

                   
   

  
           

                     
   

  
                  

    
  

                   
   

  
          

                      

   

       
      

  
 

 
          

  
 

  
       

      
         

  
        
             

          
   

   
  

  
 

              
 

            
 

 
 

         
  

       
       

 
         

   

  
                       

   
   

    
   

    

  
       

   
     

       

      
   

  
   

  
   

     
  

      
       

     
    

    
 

    
  

   
   

   
  

      
                    

  
                                                                     

  

  

       
                  

 

   

      
                                 

                                  
  

                        
                                                  

      
                         

                                         
               

                    
                                                

                                                                                                                                                       
                                                            

                                                                                                         



    
   

              
                    

                         
                    

                      
                 
 

        
       

                             
                                              

 
                

 
       

  
 

    
 

  
           

      
    

                      
    

    
                                      
                                         

                  
    

                                                     
    

 
       

     
          

       
     

     
        

  
  

  
       

   
    

                    
  

 
          

                          
       

      
   

         
                           

          
  

     

                      
   

 
                  

 
      

    
           

                   
                   

    

   

   
     

    

   
              

                     
        

      
 

  
                      

              
  

 
          

 
  

   
    

  
                  

                      
               

  
               

       
    

    
 

                                           
       

   
                

    
                                                                             

                              
       

  
                 

       
  

         
                   

       
        

         
 

     
           

   
  

       
             

 

   
 

 
  

    
 

  
         

      
         

                                         
  

       
                  

          
 

 
              

 
         

 
         

 
                                       

            
    

    
       
  

            
        

                            
    

        
    

    
   

   
        

   
       

         
      
      

  
       

   
         

            
        
    

   
    

       
  

  
  

        
   

      
   

 

       
                         

              
    

    
     

 

                                   

       
                            

                                   
                                

 
                        

                
                                

   
                        

                                   
 

        
            

                     
                                   

           
                                                                                       

                      
                                                       

                                                                                        
      

                                    
                                              





     
         
          

   

       
   

      

     

         

        

    

   

    

           

      

        

        

         

        

      

         

          

          

          

    

         

        

        

         

      

           

   



  

             
              

              
             

               
           

            
           

            

            

             
  

           
 

            
            

             
               

             
 

                
              

       

  



   

    

   

 

   

      
    

   

            
        

     

                
             

          
                 
              

   

               
             
            

                 
              

 

             

 

   

     
  

  

     

 



  

  

  

  

  

    

       

       
    

               
           

         
        
         
      

     
   

   

       
    

     

     
      

 
     

     

      

    

    
   

   

        
     

     

     

      

     

    

     

    



    
  

  

 
  

  
 

 

 
 

  
 

      

    

    

  

  

    

        

   

      

 

     

  

     

    

   

 



    

    
          

          

   

        
      

          

        

        

 

       
       

      
   

  

              

   

            

               

     

    



     

    

           
          

  

             

     

         
        

       
 

        

       

        

   

  

           
  

            

              

     

      



          
                

          
                     

                                                 
                            

                                 
             
      

              
           

         
     

  
                     

        
      

     
     

      
 

   
         

        
        

        

        

                  
       

              
         

               
  

  
             

         
  

      

 



      

            
              

             
              
           

               
             
                

 
            

              

              
    
    

       

       

   

      

          

      
   

     

 

          
    



       
                            

  

             

   
  

  



    
           

        

        

 
 

 

  

  
       

       

       

   
             

      

   
           

       

 
      

    

       



    

     

   

   

   

     

    
        

     
   

     

   

 

      

 

  

    



     

     
    

   

      

  

       

    
        

       
     

  

 
    

  

   
     

 

 
  

  

   

   
   
      
   

   
   

 
  

  
  

  
     

   
   

    

 
        
  
     
      
    

   
    

   
      

    
             

       
           

    

  

    
    
    
    
    

   

 

       
         

    

 





     
         

         

   

    

 

    

     

         

        

    

   

     

   

    

           

      

        

        

         

        

      

         

          

          

          

    

         

        

        

         

      

           

   



  

             
              

              
             

               
           

            
           

            

            

             
  

           
 

            

            

             

               

             
 

                
              

       

 



   

    

   

 

   

      
    

   

            
        

     

                
             

          
                 
              

   

               
             
            

                 
              

 

             

 

   

    
 

  

     

 



  

  

  

  

  

    

       

       
    

               
           

         
        
         
      

     

   
   

       

    

     

     

      
 

     
     

      

    

    

   

        
     

     

      
      
     

    

     

    

 



 

  
 

   

   

 

      

    

    

  

  

    

        

   

      

 
   

  

     

    

   

 

  

 

 



     

     

    

       
          

  

          

      

         

       
        

  

        

         

      

  

  

 
         

   

         

            

   

     



    

   

    
     

         

   

            

     
         
        

        

 

     

       
   

  

   

   

 

  

    

   

  

 
 

  

  

 

   

    



  
 

            
       

                                         
             

 
    
   

   
        

             
      

        
       
          

         
     

  
  

                  
        

      
     

     

      

   
         

        
       

       
       

          
   

 

        
     

    

       
       

 
       

  

  

  

     
   

  
  



      
 

                                                               
              

                                       

              

      

     
    

     

  
   

   

      

      
  

      
   

           

      
    

 



    

     

   

   

   

     

    
        

    

   

     

   

 

        

 

  

    



     

         
   

     
  

    
      

        
 

      
    

  

  

  
   
     

 
 

  
  

  

   
  

     
  
  

   

  
     

     
     
     
     

  
     

    
   
  
  
   

      
   

   
       

    

     

 

  

              
           

            

                
                 

                 

           
     

    
      

 



  

  

  

 

   

   

  

 

   

   

 
    

  

          
 

            
              

  

   
          

     

           
  

         
           

  

           
           

            
 

            
 

              
    

                  
  

          

             
              
   

          
        

         

             
             

             
 

  
 

  



  

             

    

   

            
 

        
              

            

 
              

                

                  
         

    

   

       
    

   

   

   

   

   

    
     

  









  

     
   

  

 

      

    

    

  

  

       

        

   

      

 

   
  

    

   

   

  



    

    
    

      

   
    

   

           

      
         

        

        

 

        

       
        

     

  

            

  

     

     

 

   
   

  

  

  

 

   

 

    



    

    

        

         

   
    

  

        

        

   

        

       

        

  

        

       

       

     

  

 

   

    

   

  

 
  

  

  

 

   

  

 

    

   

   

 

   



     
     

        
 

               
         

           

         
      

       
             

                

              
          
         

           
               

           
         
        
       

     
          
          
          

           
                

            
                

      

               
      

    
         

     
       

      
       

  
      



    

              

            
                            

                    
                    
            

                         
                     

                      

                  
                                 

                 

                        
                     

                          
                  

                                     
                     
                 

                    
                    
                          
             

                              
                               
                       

                                       
                 

              
         

        
                

          
        

          
            

           
        
                               
                       

              
            

          
            

     

         
  

                               

          
      



    

     

   

   

   

     

    

     
   

     

   

 

     

 

  

    



  

   

  
           

   

    

     
 

 
  

  

 

     
   

    
          

  
 

    
      

          

         
     

    

            

      
     

                

       
        
       

     
     

  

  



           

      
   

   
 

        
     

    
      

 
       
                       

    
  

   

 
  
      

                               
        

     

                
 

 

     
      
     
     

 

 
       

                                          
   

      
   

 
 

      
   

   
            

     

 
 
 

 
 

 
  

          
                                                            

   
   

  

    

                                                                                                              

 

 



    
      

    

   

     

        

             

               

        

             
                  

                

          

                    

                    

            

   

   
       

                 

     

  

               

        

        
         

             

         
   

  

                 

     

     

         

  
                

  



    

    

 

 

      

    

    

  

  

  

        

   

   

      

 

   
  

     

    

    

  



    

   

      
 

           
  

    

      

       

         

         

       
         

 

        

        
         
    

  

   

  

    

     

  

   
   

  

  

  

 

   

    

 



    

    
          

           

  

            
          

          
           

         

  

        

       

          

    

  

           

  

            

              

     

    



   

      
 

             
               

               
                

            
                            

           

               
        
       

       
         

          
      

      

           
              

                        
       

            

   
                

                   
            

       
     

         
     

   
        

            

     
     

      
      

           
           

  
  

       
 

           



                        
   

    

   

   
 

 

           

                              
              
            

                                      

                                      
                                

                               
                      

                        
                   

                                   
                   

                             
                        

                          
                               

                                  
                               

                                
                           

                               
                         
                      

                     
      
                                       
                      
                                   
                            

                          

                        

               
               

                                

                        

                       

                        

      

     
            

            
          

      
          

     
     

     
       

    
           

    

      
             

        
       

   

    
       

 

    



     

    

     
        

 
    

 

     
         

     

     
   

     

     

          
           

           
            

        
         
          

          
           

         
          

          
      

   

         
         

           
         

           
          

       

          
           
         

        
           
           

           

          
          
          
       

           
           

           
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

          
          

           

 



     

    

    

                                             

    
       

       
       

   

   
  

     

   

        
           

         
       

            
         

   

      

   

     

         

         
        

    

    

 



     

    

 
 

 
 

 

   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  



    
      

    
   

     

        

                

              

        

               

                 
                 

          

                    

                    

            

   

   
       

                

     

  
               

        
        

          

        
        

    

  

                 

      

     

          

  
                

 



      

    

    

  

  

   

   

      

 

   
 

     

   

   

 



    

    

          

           

  

              

      

         

      

        

 

         

        

          

   

 

           

   

     

    

    

 
 

  

  

  

  

 

  

   

    



    

    

             

          

   

              

       

         
      

         

  

          

         

          

   

  

 
           

  

            

              

     

    



     

     

 

          

           
                                              

   

   

            

         

       
        

      
       

       

   

       

                  
         

      
     

     
      

       
         

          
      

      

         

      

   

   

      
     

      
  

  

  

   
   

      



         
                 

      
    

   

   
  

 

                        
            

     
            
        

           
          
                 

      
       

       
               
          
            
             
               
              
                      
                       
                         

                   
                           
                              
                   

                     
                      

                           
                        

                          
                    
                       

                       
                       

                        
                                
                               

                         

                        
    

      
       

          
      

     
     

   
          

    
        

       
        

   
     

      
        

  
    

 
  

 



    

      

             
          

                  
                 

    
   

    
     
     

    
     

        
         

        
                  

       
     

   
   
    

    
       
     

      
      

   
     
    
     
    

      
     

     
     

   
   

  
   
     
   

     
   

   
     

    
       

      
    

      
      
       

     
       
    

      
       

     
      
          

   
              
    

          
             
    

           
                          

                    
     

      
                  

    

       

 
   



    
      

    
   

     

        

             

               

        

               
                 

               

          

                    

                    

            

   

   
       

                 

     

  
               

        
         

         

        

          

   

  

                 

      

        

          

                

  



  
    

      

    

    

  

  
    

        

   

      

 

   
  

     

   

   

 



    

    

          

         

   

               

       

        
       

        

  

         

       
         

  

  

           

   

   

     

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

   

    



    

    

       

         

   

           

      

          

      
        

  

      

       

      

  

 

 
           

  

       

         

  

    



   

      

 

           

          
                 

     
               

   
   

   

          

        

       
       

       

      
        

   

      

                    
         

      
      

     

      

       

           

           

      

      

      

       

   

   

     

 

     

  

  

  

    

    

       



   
    

 
    

  
     

    
   

   
 

 

 
  

 

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

    

    

     

       

     

    

    
     
    

     

   

     

   

    

     
      
     

      

     

    
    

     

     

       

    

     

     

    

     

    

    

    

    
   
    

    

       

   

   

   

    

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

          
     

    
              

     
        

     
             

  
      

     
        

        
        

         
          
          
       
         

    
    

  

   
   
  

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

        
       
       
    
      

   
     

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

  

  

  
   

         
      

        
    

       
    

   
      
     

      

  
   

  

   
    

     

 
   
      

 
 

  
 

 

       
  
 

 
  



    

      
        

             

          
                                  

     
   
    

    
    
    

     
        

           
           
                

    
     

     
     

       
     

    
     

     
     

    
      

   
    

        
      

       
     

    
     

    
     

     
      

       
       

     
       

     
         

            
         

         
         

        
      
          

     
      
       

         
         

      
       

           
           
    

      

        
     

           
    

        
                            

                    

                
         

                  

   

       

   



    
      

    

   

     

        

              

               

        

                

                 
             

          

                    

                    

            

   

   
             

                 

     

  
             

        
         

         

             

        
   

  

                 

      

        

          

   
                

  



 

 

    
 

           

        

       

     

  

  

        

   

   

      

 
   

 



    

       

   

       

         

  

           

          

          

         
        

  

      
         

        

   

 

  

  

    

     

  

 
  

  

  

 

   

    

 



    

    

          

          

   

               

          

        
         

         

  

          

       
         

   

  

           

  

            

              

     

    



   

 
 

            

    
  

             
          

               
                            

                               
           

           
             

          
        

       
         

          
       

      
 

            

               
           

           
      
           

    
          

                                                  
           

   
         

       

                
                

             
       

                
  

         
       



                          
   

    

   

   

 
 

                              
                

                
                             

                     
                           

             
                                         

              
                

                          
                   
                  

                   

                    
                 

               
              
                 

                 
                     
                
                 
              
              
                     
           
                               
                        
                              
                           
                  
          
                            
                               
                             

                           
    

     
       

             
     

     
  

    
            

    
       

    
     

            
      

        

  
      

   
 



     

    

     
       

     
         

     

      
  

     

    

          
           

           
            

        
          
          

          
          

         
          

          
       

   

         
         

           
         

           
          

       

          
           
         

        
           
           

           

          
          
          
       

           
           

           
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

          
          

           

 



     

    

    

                                             

    
       

     
         

 

 

  

     

    
        

           
         

       
            

         
   

      

    

   

     

       
  

 
      

      
    

     

     

  

     

 



     

    

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  



    
      

    
   

     

        

            

               

        

              
                 

               

          

                    

                    

            

   

   
            

                 

     

  

              
         

         
       

        
         

    

  

                 

      

       

          

 
                

   



    
 

      

    

    

  

    

        

   

      

 
   

  

     

 

 

  
 
  



    

    

         

          

   

          
       

      

      
        

 

          

         

         

   

  

           

   

            

               

     

    



    

    

         

          

   

               

       

     
    

        

  

        

        

         

  

  

           

  

            

              

    

    



  
         

              
                          

        
   

              
      

        

       

       
        

             
       

        
       
           

          
        

     
                 

        

      

     

     

              

   

          

        

        

       

       

          
   

       
         

 

      
    

        
     

     
          

   

       

   



       

            
              

             
             
          

              
             
              

       

              

 
    

 
  

    
     

   

   

       

     
   

      
   

    

     
   



 

 
                    

         

              

                 
              

                

                    

                 

                  

                        

                           
                       

                         

                        
                        

                          

                       
                   

                     
                    

                   
                   

                   

                   

     

                                                                      

                
                  

                

                  

                
                

               
               

                 
                

    

            
          

                
              
               

               
                

    

  
              

               
                  

                
    

    
    

  
    

 

    
    

    
   



    
      

    
   

     

        

              

               

        

               
                 
              

          

                    

                    

            

   

   
           

                 

     

  

               
        

        

       

        

         

    

  

                 

      

     

          

  
                

 



    
    

      

    

    

  

  

    

   

      

 

   
  

     

    

   



    

   
           

            

    

              

     
        

         
       

  

         

        

          

  

  

 
           

  

            

              

     

    



    

   

          

          

   

            
       

          
       

        

  

        

        

          

   

   

            

   

            

              

     

    



   

     
    

              

                                                      
     

     
    

 

        
             
       
        

       
         

           
      

      

           
             

     
      

          
     

 

        
           

      

      

     

          
   

  
   

 
    

      
            

  
        

   
      

  

    

    



   
      

  
 

 
 

 
  

   
    

   

   
 

 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

               

    

       
     

   

     
   

     
   

  
  

    
 

  

  

    
   

      
     
           
       

       

      

     
  

      
         

  

          
       
         

  
       
       

      
    

     
   

   
      

   
       
    

  

  

   
  

    
         

 

      

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

        
    

  

  

  
    

   

   

     

  

     
    
     

   
  

 
   

     

 

      
    
       

   

 
 

    
       

     

 

  
 

 

 
  

   



    

  

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

   

    

   

   

   

   

    

                
           

  
  
   
  

   

            
           

  

        

 

 

 

  
   

   
   

    

 

   
   

  
 

   

   
  

   
   

   
    

  

       
        

     

   

     

  



    

    

    

   

   

             

            

          

            

            

   

  

 
   



From: Ruthanne Levister  
Sent: Monday, September 15, 2025 10:02:11 AM 
To: Pete Wilson <pwilson@ChesterCountySC.gov> 
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Resignation from Tax Assessment Board of Appeals 

 

Good Morning Mr. Wilson, 

Thank you for giving me the opportunity to serve on the Tax Assessment Board of Appeals. Your faith in me has meant a 
great deal. 

After much thought, however, I’ve decided that I must resign my position, eƯective immediately. 

Sincerely, 
Ruthanne S. Levister 

  

 

  

NOTICE:The information contained in this message is Bank privileged and confidential information intended only for the 
use of the individual or entity named above. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby 
notified that any dissemination, distribution or copy of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this 
communication in error, please immediately notify us via email. Thank you. 

SECURITY NOTICE:Spratt Savings Bank will never ask you to send non-public private information through e-mail, such as 
your PIN, Social Security numbers, or account numbers. Please do not respond to any e-mail requesting this type of 
information. 

 

NOTICE:The information contained in this message is Bank privileged and confidential information intended only for the 
use of the individual or entity named above. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby 
notified that any dissemination, distribution or copy of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this 
communication in error, please immediately notify us via email. Thank you. 

SECURITY NOTICE:Spratt Savings Bank will never ask you to send non-public private information through e-mail, such as 
your PIN, Social Security numbers, or account numbers. Please do not respond to any e-mail requesting this type of 
information. 

 












